
1 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
Minutes of Meeting of Planning Committee of Mid Ulster District Council held 
on Tuesday 3 June 2025 in Council Offices, Ballyronan Road, Magherafelt and 
by Virtual Means 
 
 
Members Present  Councillor S McPeake, Chair 
 

Councillors Bell, Black, J Buchanan, Carney*, Clarke, 
Graham*, Johnston, Kerr, Martin, McElvogue,  
D McPeake, Mullin*, Robinson, Varsani 

 
Officers in    Mr Bowman, Head of Strategic Planning (HSP) 
Attendance   Ms Donnelly, Council Solicitor 

Ms Doyle, Head of Local Planning (HLP) 
Mr Marrion, Senior Planning Officer (SPO) 
Ms McCullagh, Senior Planning Officer (SPO) 
Ms McKinless, Senior Planning Officer (SPO) 
Mr McClean, Senior Planning Officer (SPO) 
Miss Thompson, Committee and Member Services 
Officer 

 
Others in    Councillor McAleer*** 
Attendance   Councillor McFlynn 

Councillor Molloy*** 
 
    LA09/2024/1003/F Mr Hughes 

LA09/2024/1015/O Ms Gourley 
   Mr Mallaghan MP 
LA09/2024/1048/F Mr Begley 
LA09/2024/1359/O Ms Lewis 

    LA09/2025/0097/F Ms Gourley 
       Mr Mallaghan MP 
    LA09/2025/0129/O Ms Gourley 

     LA09/2025/0131/O Ms Gourley 
  
 
* Denotes Members present in remote attendance 
** Denotes Officers present by remote means 
*** Denotes Others present by remote means    
      
The meeting commenced at 6.05 pm 
 
The Chair, Councillor S McPeake welcomed everyone to the meeting and those 
watching the meeting through the Live Broadcast. Councillor S McPeake in 
introducing the meeting detailed the operational arrangements for transacting the 
business of the committee in the Chamber and by virtual means, by referring to 
Annex A to this minute. 
 
 
 



2 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

P065/25 Notice of Recording 
 
Members noted that the meeting would be webcast for live and subsequent 
broadcast on the Council’s You Tube site. 
 
P066/25   Apologies 
 
None. 
 
P067/25 Declarations of Interest 
 
The Chair, Councillor S McPeake reminded members of their responsibility with 
regard to declarations of interest. 
 
Councillor McElvogue declared an interest in agenda item 5.5 – LA09/2024/0385/F 
and agenda item 5.9 – LA09/2024/1003/F. 
 
Councillor Bell declared an interest in agenda item 6.5 – LA09/2023/1344/F. 
 
P068/25 Chair’s Business  
 
Councillor Kerr referred to the awarding of mineral processing licenses and that it 
appears that the Department has taken no heed of the view of planning officers or 
elected representatives.  The Councillor stated that people would be aware of his 
views on this type of project and the negative associations to the environment, 
tourism and the health of local residents.  Councillor Kerr stated that the negatives 
far outweigh the positives and the lack of consultation from the Department 
responsible to railroad these decisions is unacceptable.  Councillor Kerr proposed 
that the Council takes legal action against the decision of the Department to award 
licenses and seeks a judicial review. 
 
Councillor McElvogue seconded Councillor Kerr’s proposal. 
 
The Council Solicitor stated that Council would need to consider the merits of a legal 
challenge before taking any action.  The Council Solicitor suggested that officers 
look into the possibility of a legal challenge prior to confirming any action. 
 
The Chair stated he was not prejudicing what Councillor Kerr was saying but that 
Council needed to look at everything carefully.  The Chair stated this reminded him 
of a similar situation in relation to goldmining and that Council took its time to 
consider and get legal opinion to come up with a course of action.  The Chair stated 
that there was an avenue to look into what Councillor Kerr had proposed but that he 
did not feel it could be agreed to tonight. 
 
Councillor Kerr stated he had also made the proposal in relation to goldmining after 
Derry and Strabane Council had taken a legal challenge against that application.  
The Councillor stated he was willing to accept that officers look at the possibility of a 
legal challenge but that this needs to have a quick turnaround.  Councillor Kerr 
asked that a report be brought back to Committee within two months as Council 
needs to show the Department that they have taken a wrong decision and to strongly 
challenge that. 



3 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

Councillor Bell stated he took on board what had been said and asked what a 
reasonable timeframe would be for officers to consider what has been asked. 
 
Councillor Varsani stated that the legal team need to be given time and that it is her 
understanding that it was Crown Estates who gave the licenses and not a Ministerial 
decision at Stormont. 
 
The Council Solicitor stated that officers will consider and provide a summary of the 
legal advice to Members by way of report. 
 
The Head of Local Planning (HLP) referred to the below applications which were on 
the agenda for determination and sought approval to have the following applications 
deferred from tonight’s meeting schedule for the following reasons –  
 
Agenda Item 5.2 - LA09/2023/0116/O - Replacement dwelling and garage at 55m E 
of 146 Ardboe Road, Ardboe for Mr & Mrs Peter Hanna – To consider additional 
information. 

Agenda Item 5.3 - LA09/2023/0417/O - Site for a dwelling and domestic garage on a 
farm at 330m N of 21 Ballymoghan Lane, Magherafelt for Mr Thomas Johnston – 
Office meeting. 

Agenda Item 5.4 - LA09/2023/1356/F - Demolition of existing buildings and 
redevelopment to include: a street frontage building with ground floor office space 
and 6 apartments above, and residential development in the backlands to include 5 
detached dwellings and 6 semi detached dwellings; vehicular access off Loy Street 
and ancillary development at 6 Loy Street, Cookstown and Backlands associated 
With Nos 2,4,6,8 and 10 Loy Street, Cookstown for MACM (NI) LTD – Office 
meeting. 

Agenda Item 5.5 - LA09/2024/0385/F - Additional bio and roughing filter, yard 
extension (for bale storage), boundary fence and ancillary site works at lands at 
Northway Mushrooms 24m South of No 17 Aghnagar Road, Ballygawley for 
Northway Mushrooms Ltd – Amended scheme to be submitted. 

Agenda Item 5.7 - LA09/2024/0542/F - Two storey dwelling, access and associated 
works at approx. 190m SE of 79 Aghintober Road, Dungannon for Mrs R Johnston – 
Application withdrawn from system. 

Agenda Item 5.8 - LA09/2024/0947/O - Site for dwelling and garage in a cluster at 
160 Battery Road, Moortown for Ronan Kelly – Office meeting. 
 
Agenda Item 5.17 - LA09/2025/0099/F - Change of use from ancillary outbuildings to 
1no. apartment (Retrospective) at 14 Killyman Road (Flat E) Dungannon for Mr 
Philip Kelso – Office meeting. 

Agenda Item 5.19 - LA09/2025/0106/O - Dwelling in an existing cluster at lands 
approx. 125m SW of 20 Ballyknock Road, Maghera for Miss Leah Convery – Office 
meeting. 

Agenda Item 5.26 - LA09/2025/0260/O - Site for infill dwelling & domestic garage at 
60m NE of 16 Drumhubbert Road, Dungannon for Mr James Daniel Wilson – Office 
meeting. 



4 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

Agenda Item 6.1 - LA09/2022/0657/O - Dwelling and domestic garage at 40m W of 
62 Ballynargan Road, Stewartstown for Nuala McReynolds – Withdrawn from 
schedule to consider additional information. 

Agenda Item 6.4 - LA09/2023/1257/F - New distribution hub and associated ancillary 
works at lands C.60m SW of 21 Hillhead Road, Toomebridge for Declan Graffin - 
Withdrawn from schedule. 
 

Proposed by Councillor Kerr 
Seconded by Councillor McElvogue and  

 
Resolved  That the planning applications listed above be deferred for the reasons 

outlined. 
 
 
Matters for Decision  
 
P069/25 Planning Applications for Determination 
 
The Chair drew Members attention to the undernoted planning applications for 
determination. 
 
LA09/2019/0010/F Variation of condition No 2 of M/2008/0876/RM 

(Amended Plans - Flood Defences) at Moor Park 
Housing Development, Moor Road, Coalisland for Jas 
Properties Ltd 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2019/0010/F which had a recommendation for approval. 
 

Proposed by Councillor Kerr 
Seconded by Councillor Clarke and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2019/0010/F be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2023/0116/O Replacement dwelling and garage at 55m E of 146 

Ardboe Road, Ardboe for Mr & Mrs Peter Hanna 
 
Agreed that application be deferred earlier in meeting. 
 
LA09/2023/0417/O Site for a dwelling and domestic garage on a farm at 

330m N of 21 Ballymoghan Lane, Magherafelt for Mr 
Thomas Johnston 

 
Agreed that application be deferred earlier in meeting. 
 
 
 
 



5 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

LA09/2023/1356/F Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment 
to include: a street frontage building with ground 
floor office space and 6 apartments above, and 
residential development in the backlands to include 5 
detached dwellings and 6 semi detached dwellings; 
vehicular access off Loy Street and ancillary 
development. at 6 Loy Street, Cookstown and 
Backlands associated With Nos 2,4,6,8 and 10 Loy 
Street, Cookstown for MACM (NI) LTD 

 
Agreed that application be deferred earlier in meeting. 
 
LA09/2024/0385/F Additional bio and roughing filter, yard extension (for 

bale storage), boundary fence and ancillary site 
works at lands at Northway Mushrooms 24m South of 
No 17 Aghnagar Road, Ballygawley for Northway 
Mushrooms Ltd 

 
Agreed that application be deferred earlier in meeting. 
 
LA09/2024/0461/F Battery energy storage system facility 78MW (BESS) 

including 2 switch houses with control rooms, 2 
storage containers and office trailer, lighting and 
closed circuit TV columns, new site boundary fencing 
and all associated development works at lands 
immediately NE of Tamnamore Substation and C 
150m SW of 151 Ballynakilly Road, Coalisland for 
Heron Storage Ltd 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2024/0461/F which had a recommendation for approval. 
 

Proposed by Councillor Bell 
Seconded by Councillor Varsani and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2024/0461/F be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2024/0542/F Two storey dwelling, access and associated works at 

approx. 190m SE of 79 Aghintober Road, Dungannon 
for Mrs R Johnston 

 
Application withdrawn. 
 
LA09/2024/0947/O Site for dwelling and garage in a cluster at 160 

Battery Road, Moortown for Ronan Kelly 
 
Agreed that application be deferred earlier in meeting. 
 
 



6 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

LA09/2024/1003/F Retention of window and door showroom with 
alterations to approval LA09/2021/0450/F (changes to 
fenestration, size and height of building) at 198B 
Dungannon Road, Cabragh, Dungannon for Mr 
Matthias O'Donnell 

 
Mr Marrion (SPO) presented a report on planning application LA09/2024/1003/F 
advising that it was recommended for refusal. 
 
Councillor Molloy stated he had received a call from the agent this afternoon who 
didn’t realise the application was on the agenda tonight and would ask that the 
application be deferred. 
 
The Head of Local Planning (HLP) asked what the reason was for the deferral. 
 
Councillor Molloy stated that the agent thought there could be some negotiation 
around the application and agreement reached. 
 
The HLP stated that ordinarily that may be the case but highlighted that this 
application is for the retention of a building so is either going to be acceptable as 
built or not. 
 
The Chair advised the committee that a request to speak on the application had 
been received and invited Mr Hughes to address the committee. 
 
Mr Hughes stated he was speaking on behalf of the Hughes family, the Donaghy 
family and all concerned local residents.  Mr Hughes stated that the case officers 
report speaks for itself but that he wanted to highlight some key points.  Mr Hughes 
stated that the planning approved ridge height for the building was 7.4m and that the 
built ridge height is 8.35m.  The planning approved eaves height was 4.8m and that 
the actual eaves height is 6.6m.  Mr Hughes also referred to the discrepancy in the 
length of building and that the area to the rear of the building should have a fire 
escape and parking area but that the building actually occupies this space which 
highlights that this building is at least 10.8m longer than it should be.  Mr Hughes 
stated that planning approval states that the building should have a length of approx. 
20m but taking the above into account translates that the as built property has an 
excess length of 50%.  Mr Hughes stated that the building consists of a basement, 
ground floor and first floor and that a single storey property was what had been 
approved.  Mr Hughes stated that the approved building is supposed to have a floor 
area of 298 sqm however the built building has a floor area of 878 sqm.  Mr Hughes 
referred to the images he submitted from his side of the boundary which underlines 
the impact on visual amenity and that from every angle the building is an eyesore.  
Mr Hughes states his property suffers from loss of light due to overshadowing.  
Privacy of his property has also been lost due to commercial activity on site and that 
there is additional noise and traffic due to comings and goings from the building.  Mr 
Hughes stated that the applicant’s behaviour throughout the process has been 
opportunistic and that the applicant did not seek amendments to plans when the 
building was a work in progress and instead decided to proceed with construction as 
he saw fit based on the assumption that retrospective planning permission would 
only be a formality.  Mr Hughes stated that it is clear to see the building erected is 
totally in excess of what was permitted and that the planning officer has diligently 



7 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

prepared a report and recommendation and asked the Committee to support the 
concerns raised and refuse the application. 
 
Councillor Varsani stated that both the report and Mr Hughes have set out some very 
clear issues and asked if there is any way the applicant can remedy the situation. 
 
The HLP stated that the shed has been built and that Mr Hughes has set out how 
much bigger the building is compared to what was approved.  The HLP stated that 
Members will either agree that the shed is too big or decide that the building as built 
will have no greater impact than what was approved.  Moving forward from there if 
Members decide that the building is not acceptable and it is not removed then 
enforcement action will have to be opened.  The HLP stated that the applicant has 
taken a significant risk in not building the shed in accordance with approved plans 
right next door to a dwelling.  The HLP stated that Members may want to take a site 
visit but that a comprehensive report and photographs have been provided to be 
able to assess the application. 
 
Councillor Graham stated that the applicant has gone ahead and built the shed 
whenever he knew he didn’t have the correct planning permission for it.  The 
Councillor questioned why someone would do this and agreed that the applicant has 
taken a big risk.  Councillor Graham proposed a site visit so Members can see the 
impact of what is there for themselves and stated that she found it alarming that 
people think they can do what they want without planning permission 
 
The Chair, Councillor S McPeake seconded Councillor Graham’s proposal. 
 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2024/1003/F be deferred for a site visit. 
 
LA09/2024/1015/O Dwelling and garage at approx. 70m W of 27 Sluggan 

Road, Pomeroy for Mr Pearse and Matthew Rafferty 
 
Ms McKinless (SPO) presented a report on planning application LA09/2024/1015/O 
advising that it was recommended for refusal.  Ms McKinless also referred to 
additional refusal reason which was omitted from the officer report as follows -  
 
The proposal is contrary to Policy CTY 8 of PPS 21 in that a dwelling in this location 
will add to an existing ribbon of development along this section of Sluggan Road. 
 
The Chair advised the committee that requests to speak on the application had been 
received and invited Ms Gourley to address the committee in the first instance. 
 
Ms Gourley stated that the application is for Matthew Rafferty and that Matthew’s 
father Pearse lives in the farm house and inherited the farm buildings and ground.  
Ms Gourley stated that Pearse’s brothers Colm and Peadar both built their houses 
approx. 30 years ago a few metres East on the family farm as dwellings on the farm 
and that both Colm and Peadar work and assist with everyday running and 
management of the farm albeit they are not named on the farm business which was  
stated is not unusual occurrence.  Ms Gourley stated that the site had been chosen 
to cluster with the Uncle’s bungalows and outbuildings only a few metres East.  Ms 
Gourley stated that CTY10 states that new dwellings should visually link or cluster 
with buildings on the farm, not necessarily adjacent to the farm grouping and that the 



8 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

applicant explained that the two brothers are involved in the farm business and that 
written declarations were willing to be supplied but the offer was never taken up on 
and the case officers claims that evidence was not provided is inaccurate.  Ms 
Gourley stated that the applicant has also provided detail as to why a site closer to 
the farm business is not available.  Ms Gourley stated that this application was 
submitted on 30 August 2024 and only ten days later she was able to secure 
planning permission for an almost identical scenario less than two miles away.  
Similarly the site which was approved without any issue was located adjacent to the 
farmer’s sons dwellings and outbuildings.  These buildings were located on an 
outlying holding located almost 2km from the main farm address and the case officer 
for that application accepted that CTY10 did not require the site to be adjacent to the 
main farm grouping and acknowledged that the site was located beside the farmer’s 
sons and did not ask for evidence of their involvement in the farm business.  As a 
direct result of this decision, Ms Gourley stated she advised the applicant of the 
application under consideration tonight that an application located beside his Uncle’s 
houses would likely be accepted.  Ms Gourley stated that the planning department 
must be consistent in their interpretation of CTY10 otherwise agents cannot advise 
clients what will and will not be allowed.  Ms Gourley stated that the recent 
permission of a site less than two miles away lends support to the fact that family 
dwellings are buildings on the holding for the purposes of compliance with CTY10 
and that in the interests of fairness and consistency and that this Council granted a 
similar case in recent months she argued that the proposal does meet the thrust of 
CTY10 and asked Members to approve the application. 
 
Mr Mallaghan MP stated that the case as outlined by the agent is correct and that a 
number of brothers work on the farm and that sheds are in use as part of the farm 
business.  Mr Mallaghan also referred to recent similar applications which were 
passed where a dwelling was passed which was not part of the main cluster of farm 
buildings but was in another part of the farm where buildings existed and asked for a 
consistent approach from planners. 
 
The HLP stated that Members have heard the officers report and recent decisions of 
the PAC.  Members have also been advised of alleged similar situations which have 
been approved.  The HLP stated that officers are not saying that buildings have to be 
adjacent to farm buildings but they have to be sited to cluster or visually link and that 
buildings on a farm is also key.  The HLP stated that Members have to decide if two 
brothers who help out on another brothers farm for no payment is an acceptable 
threshold for buildings on a farm and is an acceptable bar in the future.  The HLP 
stated that this approach has not been supported by PAC. 
 
Ms McKinless also reminded Members of an additional reason for refusal on the 
creation of ribbon development and that the application is considered to extend an 
existing ribbon of development. 
 
Councillor Clarke stated that one of the issues seems to be 70m from farm sheds 
and that dwellings have been passed at least 70m away in the past as there can 
issues with health and safety. 
 
The HLP stated that no case of health and safety has been made and making an 
assumption that there are health and safety reasons would not be the safest 
approach. 



9 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

Councillor Clarke stated that he has been farming for over 50 years and has been 
representing farmers for most of that time.  The Councillor stated that everyone is 
aware of accidents which have happened and that is what is in his mind and that he 
should not be denied the ability to think the way he does.  Councillor Clarke stated 
that 70m has been passed before and is not out of the way, the Councillor also 
referred to refusal reason one as set out in the officer report - The proposal is 
contrary to the Strategic Planning Policy Statement and Policy CTY 1 of Planning 
Policy Statement 21: Sustainable Development in the Countryside in that there are 
no overriding reasons why this development is essential in this rural location and 
could not be located within a settlement.  Councillor Clarke stated if someone is 
working on a farm, whether being paid or not, they are working on the farm and have 
a right to be living near it and not in a town.  The Councillor questioned who devised 
the policies and the corralling of people into settlements so they can be controlled 
and stated that settlements in Ireland are different from anywhere else. 
 
The HLP stated that the policies were set by the Executive and are not denying 
people to live in a rural area but are there to control it in a measured way.  The HLP 
stated that officers accept that there is an active and established farm and that there 
have been no sell off opportunities but that the third test relates to visual linkage or 
siting to cluster.  The HLP stated she was not denying anyone the right to think the 
way they want to but that she is trying to keep Members right in regard to the 
interpretation of policy.  The HLP questioned Members on whether they felt the 
brothers live on the farm and the work that they do contributes enough and therefore 
their buildings are on the farm.  The HLP stated that officers are not saying the 
applicant doesn’t have a case but that other policies have to be met and that other 
applications have been refused based on ribbon development.  The HLP stated that 
there are other options available which have not been explored. 
 
Councillor Mullin referred to comments in relation to the Uncles not being asked to 
provide evidence of involvement in the farm.  The Councillor felt that if this evidence 
was provided it would show them as being active on the farm and that they lived in 
houses on the farm and that there was a cluster on the family farm.  Councillor Mullin 
stated she comes from a farming family and that all houses are not on the farm but 
the belief is that everyone lives on the farm and that this is the same across rural 
areas.  Councillor Mullin stated that if the two brothers can provide evidence of 
working on the farm she didn’t see why the dwellings couldn’t be considered as 
being on the farm and therefore proposed that the application be approved. 
 
Ms McKinless referred to email from the applicant dated 5 December 2024 which 
stated that Colm and Peadar grew up on the farm and have a strong connection to 
the farm and have been involved in the farm business for the last 50 years.  Both 
actively assist with duties on the farm especially during busy seasons such as 
sileage, slurry and calving and are on the farm most evenings assisting with feeding 
and daily farm tasks and are vital to the farm business.  Neither men are on the 
business account and receive no payment from the farm however they were both 
awarded with sites on the farm many years ago as acknowledgement and 
recognition of their contribution to the farm.  Both men work on the farm because of 
their love and family connection to the farm.  It was advised that Colm and Peadar 
are willing to provide written statements if needed. 
 



10 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

Councillor Varsani stated it is important to listen to the guidance being offered to 
make sure the Committee is working within policy and for the Committee to show a 
degree of understanding of the circumstances and that she felt what had just been 
read out has helped to clarify the situation.  On that basis, Councillor Varsani 
seconded Councillor Mullin’s proposal. 
 
Ms McKinless stated that it is not just the CTY10 reason for refusal but that ribbon 
development is also a reason for refusal. 
 
Councillor Black stated that on listening to everything tonight he felt there is an 
opportunity to do something but that he was not a fan of making decisions on the 
hoof.  The Councillor proposed that the application be deferred for a site visit or for 
the additional information to be obtained to ensure the Committee is making a sound 
decision. 
 
Councillor Graham referred to the reference that the two brothers were awarded with 
sites for all the work they had done on the farm and questioned if they got sites on 
the farm how can the houses not be part of the farm. 
 
The HLP stated it was her understanding that this is the case.  The HLP stated that if 
similar had happened in the last ten years and the brothers were not named on the 
farm business then it would be considered as a sell off opportunity.  The HLP stated 
that just because they were on the farm at a time does not mean they would still be 
considered on the farm if they weren’t involved with the level of involvement they 
have at present. 
 
Councillor Graham stated she felt a site visit would be helpful in this case instead of 
jumping to a decision tonight and seconded Councillor Black’s proposal. 
 
The HLP stated she agreed that a site visit would be useful to ensure the siting of the 
proposal is acceptable and that to overturn a recommendation based on ribbon 
development without a visual inspection could be challenged. 
 
Councillor Varsani referred to recent site visit which she felt was useful to explore the 
difference between ribboning and cluster and stated she would be happy to proceed 
with a site visit for this application. 
 
Councillor Mullin stated it was not solely the brothers houses but that there are other 
houses around which are used for the farm and that this would take away the ribbon 
issue. 
 
The Chair asked if there was a seconder for Councillor Mullin’s proposal. 
 
Councillor Varsani stated she had seconded Councillor Mullin’s proposal but that she 
would be content with a site visit. 
 
Councillor Kerr seconded Councillor Mullin’s proposal. 
 
The HLP stated that a rationale was needed to overturn the recommendation to 
refuse the application and determine approval.  The HLP stated that if the Committee 
consider that the policy threshold is being met whereby the family members are 



11 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

involved in the running of the farm and the proposed siting is beside the brothers 
dwellings and that these are buildings on the farm which will visually link with the 
proposal then policy CTY10 can be met.  In relation to ribbon development the HLP 
advised that she has not been to the site and it may be difficult for Members to 
consider if they have also not been to the site therefore it is difficult to come up with 
a rationale in that respect. 
 
Councillor Mullin stated that the brothers live on the farm and that there are other 
farm dwellings around which are used for the farm therefore this would take away 
the ribbon. 
 
The HLP stated that going on the visual inspection of the map being shown there are 
buildings to the East which have frontage to the road thereby there is ribboning and 
that this proposal will add to it.  The HLP stated it is not because there are buildings 
on the farm that this will get away from the argument of ribbon development.  The 
HLP stated that ribbon development only comes into play under CTY14 which 
relates to rural character and that one of the points under this is that it doesn’t create 
or add to a ribbon of development.  The HLP stated that Members needed to be 
clear in their rationale and that this may be obtained by having a site visit. 
 
Councillor Mullin referred to the visual linkage to the brothers houses and asked 
does this not do away with ribboning because the application is passed under 
dwelling on farm. 
 
Ms McKinless referred to two recent appeal decisions where the applications were 
refused as farm dwellings and also on the basis of ribboning and that whilst policy 
CTY10 may be met policies CTY13 and CTY14 also have to be met. 
 
Councillor Mullin asked what it would take to meet the criteria of CTY13 and CTY14. 
 
Ms McKinless stated that a ribbon is considered as three or more buildings along a 
road frontage.  In this case there is no. 27 and no.25 and no.23 therefore a dwelling 
on the application site would be an extension of a ribbon. 
 
The Chair stated that he felt a site visit would be beneficial as he did not feel an 
informed decision can be made without seeing the site. 
 
Councillor Mullin stated she would withdraw her proposal to approve the application 
and agreed to move forward with a site visit. 
 
Councillor Varsani stated that the discussion tonight had been useful and that a site 
visit will help to clarify the situation. 
 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2024/1015/O be deferred for a site visit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

LA09/2024/1048/F Replacement dwelling at 73A Tanderagee Road, 
Pomeroy, Dungannon for Mr Damien Hamilton 

 
Ms McKinless (SPO) presented a report on planning application LA09/2024/1048/F 
advising that it was recommended for refusal and referred to addendum in relation to 
amendment to recommended refusal reason to read - The proposal is contrary to 
Policies CTY 1 and CTY 3 of Planning Policy Statement 21: Sustainable 
Development in the Countryside and does not merit being considered as an 
exceptional case in that the building to be replaced is of a temporary construction 
and does not exhibit the essential characteristics of a dwelling. 
 
The Chair advised the committee that a request to speak on the application had 
been received and invited Mr Begley to address the committee. 
 
Mr Begley stated that the applicant has lived at the location since June 2014 making 
this a permanent home for his young family.  Mr Begley stated that the applicant 
lived in a caravan on site from June 2014 until March 2017 and then replaced the 
caravan with a modular home which has been his permanent home from March 2017 
until present.  Mr Begley stated that the reference to caravan on the case officer 
report refers to the original caravan when LPS started rating the property and that 
the LPS description of the property has never changed and that planning are aware 
of this as a query was raised in the processing of the CLUD application.  Mr Begley 
stated that a Certificate of Lawfulness was granted for the existing property with a 
description being domestic dwelling.  Mr Begley stated that the application is being 
refused because it is contrary to policy CTY1 and CTY3 of PPS21 and that it does 
not merit being an exceptional case because the building is of a temporary 
construction and therefore there is no dwelling on the ground which warrants 
replacement.  Mr Begley stated it does not seem logical to say there is no dwelling 
on the ground yet on a CLUD for a domestic dwelling was granted.  Mr Begley stated 
that the applicant wants to improve the building on site with a more energy efficient 
dwelling which he felt should be encouraged.  Mr Begley stated that a new building 
would not only be more energy efficient but would also be more visually pleasing and 
in keeping with other dwellings in the locality.  Mr Begley stated that planners 
referred to three PAC decisions but appear to have ignored these when approving a 
identical proposal.  Mr Begley stated that by approving that application planning have 
set a precedent that this type of proposal can be acceptable and that there have 
been no policy changes since that time.  Mr Begley stated that it isn’t logical to grant 
a CLUD for a domestic dwelling on site which allows the applicant to live at that 
location for as long as he wants but yet is refusing this application. 
 
The HLP asked what the views are of the site from either approach along the road. 
 
Ms McKinless stated she had not been to the site but that the case officer does not 
consider the proposed dwelling to be a prominent feature in the landscape and that 
the combination of existing and proposed landscaping is sufficient to ensure 
integration into the area.  Ms McKinless stated that the proposal has a set back 
position approx. 65m from the road and is nestled behind existing development, 
there have been no objections to the application from no.73. 
 
The Chair stated it is a strange scenario in that the current building is lawful and can 
stay there in perpetuity when a modest sized dwelling would be more satisfactory. 



13 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

The HLP stated that the application is recommended for refusal because policy 
states that buildings of a temporary construction will not be eligible for replacement 
under this policy.  The HLP referred to the CLUD which is described as a residential 
dwelling and whether Members want to give weight to this whilst accepting that the 
building is of a temporary construction. 
 
Councillor Mullin stated that there is a dwelling there and that the proposal is to 
replace that dwelling.  The Councillor stated that it would be better for the family and 
the environment to live in a modest style dwelling rather than try and heat a log 
cabin.  Councillor Mullin proposed that the proposal be approved. 
 
Councillor Varsani seconded Councillor Mullin’s proposal. 
 
Councillor D McPeake referred to the existing CLUD and that he did not see the 
difference in having a modest dwelling on site. 
 
Councillor Clarke stated there is only one reason for refusal and that is that there is 
no dwelling on the ground.  The Councillor stated there is a dwelling on the ground. 
 
The Chair stated that the nature of the permanency makes the application easier to 
approve. 
 
The HLP asked that conditions of approval be delegated to officers. 
 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2024/1048/F be approved subject to 

conditions as delegated to officers. 
 
LA09/2024/1359/O Site for dwelling with domestic garage at approx. 22m 

SE of entrance to 150 Kilrea Road, Upperlands for 
Miss Charlie Lewis 

 
Ms McKinless (SPO) presented a report on planning application LA09/2024/1359/O 
advising that it was recommended for refusal. 
 
The Chair advised the committee that a request to speak on the application had 
been received and invited Ms Lewis to address the committee. 
 
Ms Lewis stated that the main objection to the application is visual intrusion on the 
open countryside.  Ms Lewis stated that several policies have been cited on the 
report and the decision was made not to refer to the Local Development Plan 2030 
but that she would request that this plan is considered due to the nearing date of 
implementation and the flexibility offered to current policies.  Ms Lewis referred to the 
rural needs impact assessment and the summary of issues which puts emphasis on 
growth and flexibility of development in the countryside.  Ms Lewis stated that in the 
Local Development Plan 2030 it highlights that there are plans for a rail line to run 
300m to the East of the proposal site which indicates future development in the area.  
Ms Lewis stated there have been no objections from the four neighbours notified and 
no objection from DfI with NI Water providing alternative drainage solutions.  Ms 
Lewis stated that Kilrea Road is not a protected route and that the applicant is happy 
to provide a Biodiversity Checklist Report along with adherence to any other 
guidelines.  Ms Lewis stated that the planning report recognises an appropriately 



14 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

designed dwelling could be accommodated within the site without being a prominent 
feature in the landscape and that the applicant plans to plant several hundred trees 
around the perimeter of the site for both the privacy of herself and her neighbours 
and to protect the visual image of the countryside.  Ms Lewis stated that residents on 
the site will ensure sustainability, protection and an enhancement of the rural 
character of the area. 
 
The Chair asked what policy the application is being considered under. 
 
Ms McKinless stated that when the application was submitted there was no 
indication under CTY1 under which policy they were applying under.  Ms McKinless 
stated that the application has been considered under the cluster policy, the infill 
policy, personal and domestic circumstances and farm policy and it was found that 
there was no case under any of those policies.  Ms McKinless referred to the 
comments in relation to Mid Ulster Development Plan 2030 and stated that no 
determining weight can be given to this plan at present. 
 
The HLP highlighted that the Committee agreed to refuse this application last month 
and that it was an error of the case officer in terms of the wording of a refusal reason 
that the application is back again tonight.  The HLP stated that no additional 
information has been submitted since last month. 
 
Councillor Varsani proposed the recommendation. 
 
The Chair seconded Councillor Varsani’s proposal. 
 
Councillor Robinson stated it is difficult for the Committee to come to any other 
decision. 
 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2024/1359/O be refused on grounds 

stated in the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2024/1427/F 2 storey dwelling and garage (change of house type 

LA09/2023/0355/F) at lands 75m S of 16 Ballyheifer 
Road, Magherafelt for Mr and Mrs Jarlath Conway 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2024/1427/F which had a recommendation for approval. 
 

Proposed by Councillor D McPeake 
Seconded by Councillor Clarke and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2024/1427/F be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



15 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

LA09/2024/1536/RM Social housing development of 4 no. 5p/3b 2 storey 
dwelling houses, 6 no. 3p/2b 2 storey dwelling 
houses and 4 no. 2p/1b apartments in 1 no. Block. 14 
no. Units in total. Construction of new service road, 
utilities and all associated site works at 26 Coalisland 
Road, Dungannon for Mr Greg Woods 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2024/1536/RM which had a recommendation for approval. 
 

Proposed by Councillor Varsani  
Seconded by Councillor Bell and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2024/1536/RM be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2025/0052/F Extension to rear of dwelling to include kitchen, 

utility, bathroom, bedrooms at 6 Rock Villas, 
Knockcloughrim for Mrs Pamela Overend 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2025/0052/F which had a recommendation for approval. 
 

Proposed by Councillor S McPeake  
Seconded by Councillor D McPeake and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2025/0052/F be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2025/0097/F Change of house type for dwelling and detached 

garage (to supersede LA09/2023/0650/RM) at lands 
85m SW of 6 Megargy Road, Magherafelt for Declan 
Donnelly 

 
Ms McKinless (SPO) presented a report on planning application LA09/2025/0097/F 
advising that it was recommended for refusal. 
 
The Chair advised the committee that requests to speak on the application had been 
received and invited Ms Gourley to address the committee in the first instance. 
 
Ms Gourley stated that the critical issue is the scale and massing of the two storey 
rear return feature and whilst she agreed that this application is larger than what was 
previously approved it is strongly felt that the site can accommodate the larger 
house.  Ms Gourley stated that views along the Megargy Road are extremely limited 
and that the photographs shown are not helpful as she had visited the site recently 
and was unable to see the site when travelling from the North and that the South 
boundary has been planted with a 4ft hedge.  Ms Gourley stated that when travelling 
along the road from the South there is a mature roadside hedge and the levels of the 
site fall away from road level so when sitting in the car the site cannot be seen.  
Further to this there is a wooded plantation behind the site.  Ms Gourley stated that 
the only issue is the impact of the rear return and that Members should consider 



16 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

whether this is so determining that a refusal is warranted.  Ms Gourley stated that the 
objector does not live anywhere near the site and that the same objection was made 
to the Reserved Matters application and that the objection relates to a dwelling on 
the site per se rather than the design of the dwelling. 
 
Mr Mallaghan MP stated that the proposal is for a modern house in the countryside 
and that already on the agenda tonight a very large house has been passed and that 
this application is not near that scale.  Mr Mallaghan stated that if the main block of 
the house is built and accepted and the applicant applied for an extension in a few 
years time then it would undoubtedly be passed. 
 
The HLP stated that there is planning permission on this site for a different dwelling 
and that there seems to be debate tonight relating to what vegetation is there.  The 
HLP stated that she has not visited the site and is not aware of what vegetation is 
there and whether the site can take a larger designed dwelling.  The HLP referred to 
the comments in relation to approval earlier in the meeting of an even larger dwelling 
and stated that this dwelling was set back from the road and closer to the settlement 
limit of Magherafelt.  The HLP stated that the principle of a dwelling on the site has 
been accepted and that the issues come down to design of the dwelling and whether 
the Committee find that appropriate. 
 
The Chair stated that if the only concern is the rear return is it make or break for the 
application. 
 
Councillor Varsani asked if there is any potential for the site to be dropped and if that 
could be conditioned. 
 
The HLP stated that design amendments were requested and that is not something 
that was offered.  The HLP stated that if amended plans were received officers 
would have to assess these and whether it would be enough to recommend an 
approval. 
 
Councillor Kerr proposed a site visit. 
 
Councillor Robinson seconded Councillor Kerr’s proposal. 
 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2025/0097/F be deferred for a site visit. 
 
LA09/2025/0099/F Change of use from ancillary outbuildings to 1no. 

apartment (Retrospective) at 14 Killyman Road (Flat 
E) Dungannon for Mr Philip Kelso 

 
Agreed that application be deferred earlier in meeting. 
 
LA09/2025/0105/O Dwelling house and garage within an existing cluster 

at lands 60m N of 138 Drumagrner Road, Kilrea for Mr 
Brian Karen McCloskey 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2025/0105/O which had a recommendation for approval. 
 



17 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

Proposed by Councillor D McPeake 
Seconded by Councillor Clarke and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2025/0105/O be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2025/0106/O Dwelling in an existing cluster at lands approx. 125m 

SW of 20 Ballyknock Road, Maghera for Miss Leah 
Convery 

 
Agreed that application be deferred earlier in meeting. 
 
LA09/2025/0129/O Infill dwelling and garage at land 50m NE of 50 

Drumard Road, Draperstown for Mr Patrick Toner 
 
LA09/2025/0131/O Infill dwelling and garage at land 50m S of 46 

Drumard Road, Draperstown for Mr Patrick Toner 
 
Ms McKinless (SPO) presented a report on planning applications LA09/2025/0129/O 
and LA09/2025/0131/O advising that they were recommended for refusal. 
 
The Chair advised the committee that a request to speak on the applications had 
been received and invited Ms Gourley to address the committee. 
 
Ms Gourley asked if there was an image that could be shown of the wall which is 
being argued splits no.46 from the farm buildings.  Ms Gourley stated there is no 
dispute that there is a continuous and built up frontage comprising of a bungalow at 
no.52, a bungalow at no.50 and a farm holding at no.46.  Ms Gourley stated that the 
single issue in respect of each site under the exception to policy centres on whether 
there is a small gap site that could accommodate up to a maximum of two houses.  
Ms Gourley stated that Council argue that the farm dwelling at no.46 sits on a 
separate plot from its associated farm buildings and shared yard and for this reason 
it is stated that no.46 sits on a plot measuring only 26m wide.  Ms Gourley stated 
that she would argue that planners are deliberately detaching or dividing the property 
at no.46 in order to create two smaller plots which will in turn bring the average plot 
size along the frontage down by a considerable degree.  Ms Gourley stated it is clear 
from the planning drawings provided, the aerial imagery and from the ground that 
no.46 is a farm house which is owned and lived in by the Campbell family and linked 
by a shared access yard and the existing accompanying farm buildings and that this 
is not an unusual occurrence.  Ms Gourley stated that domestic access is available 
to the yard from the house via a small gate in the garden wall which runs to the back 
door of the house and does not extend to split the yard from the house completely.  
Ms Gourley stated that if this was two plots the garden wall would completely 
separate the house from the yard and entry between the two would be prohibited.  
Ms Gourley stated that going by the scale concept plan no.52 sits on a plot 
measuring 54m, no.50 sits on a plot size of 44m and no.46 with the farm yard has a 
plot measuring 66m and therefore the average plot size is 55m.  Ms Gourley stated 
that each of the two application sites measures approx.58m which is less that than 
that at no.46 and only 3m more than the average plot size.  Ms Gourley stated that 
when travelling along the road each site will appear similar in size to the 
neighbouring plots and that the policy requirement is that the gap should be small 



18 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

and not fit more than two dwellings.  Ms Gourley stated that PAC refer to an 
assessment of comparable plot sizes and that this is not an exact science nor can be 
quantified via a scale ruler and is a matter of subjective judgement.  Ms Gourley 
asked what harm would result to public interest from approving these two application 
sites given the built up frontage at this location.  Ms Gourley stated that she had 
asked if there were pictures of the wall at the outset as she felt it is important as it 
will show that the wall only extends partially into the plot and does not divide the 
house from the farm buildings. 
 
The Chair stated that the lack of photographs leaves it confusing for Members.  The 
Chair stated that his interpretation of infill was frontage and regardless of whether its 
a farm yard or a building if it fronts on to the road it should be frontage.  The Chair 
felt that in the absence of photographs it would be useful for Members to see the 
site.   
 
Councillor Clarke stated it was clear to him in that there are two buildings to one side 
of the site and one building to the other side but that the issue seems to be that they 
can’t be seen together.  The Councillor stated that this is a rural area and not a town 
with the farm dwelling basically sitting in its yard and that the frontage of that is 
similar to the two dwellings to the other side.  Councillor Clarke stated that the gap in 
between is of equal size for two more dwellings and he therefore could not see how 
there is an issue. 
 
Councillor Kerr proposed a site visit. 
 
Members were in agreement. 
 
Resolved  That planning applications LA09/2025/0129/O and LA09/2025/0131/O 

be deferred for a site visit. 
 
LA09/2025/0140/F Extension to existing shop unit; new garden centre 

with holding area and amendments to service yard 
and access. Elevational changes and associated site 
works at Home Bargains, Oaks Shopping Centre, 
Oaks Road, Dungannon for Mr T Morris 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2025/0140/F which had a recommendation for approval. 
 

Proposed by Councillor Varsani 
Seconded by Councillor S McPeake and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2025/0140/F be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2025/0171/O Infill dwelling at 90m SE of 55 Annaghquin Road, 

Dungannon for Mrs Rachel Trimble 
 
Ms McKinless (SPO) presented a report on planning application LA09/2025/0171/O 
advising that it was recommended for refusal. 
 



19 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

Proposed by Councillor S McPeake 
Seconded by Councillor Varsani and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2025/0171/O be refused on grounds 

stated in the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2025/0179/F Single storey dwelling with garage at lands between 

255 and 259 Orritor Road, Cookstown (entering of 
Church Road) for Mr Serghei Hamchevici 

 
Ms McKinless (SPO) presented a report on planning application LA09/2025/0179/F 
advising that it was recommended for refusal. 
 
Councillor Clarke stated he recalled this site being discussed initially and that 
although the site is not within the settlement limits it was agreed by Members that it 
would be rounding off and asked that surely the situation remains the same. 
 
Councillor Bell stated he also recalled the outline application and that discussions at 
that time agreed that the property to the West of the site would be a natural bookend.  
The Councillor stated there is already intensification and an existing ribbon and that 
it was felt that one more property at that location would have no demonstrable 
impact on the surrounding area. 
 
The HLP stated that there is now clearer direction on these types of issues from 
PAC.  The HLP stated that PPS21 serves for the rural area and in the application of 
this for the likes of clustering, ribbon development or infill the properties being relied 
upon should also be in the rural area.  In this case, the development that is being 
relied upon in order to create an infill opportunity is all within the settlement limit on 
one side.  The site to the left has not been implemented yet.  The HLP stated that if 
the development was taken away from the left of the application site the 
development of Orritor was drawn at the road as it was considered a natural break.  
The HLP stated that no weight has been given to the previous decision to approve 
because it has expired but that Members may want to give weight to that. 
 
Councillor Bell asked if the development to the left of the red line is a development. 
 
The HLP stated it was a house. 
 
The Chair felt it was harsh to refuse this application as there is an application to the 
West of the site and that a precedent has previously been set at outline stage. 
 
Councillor Bell agreed that a precedent had been set and that there is a bookend 
which will mean development will not extend further into the countryside.  Councillor 
Bell proposed that the application be approved based on the previous decision 
taken. 
 
Councillor Kerr seconded Councillor Bell’s proposal. 
 
The HLP stated that the Committee are giving weight to the previous decision to 
approve the outline application and that whilst the provisions of PPS21 will prevail it 
is considered there are overriding material considerations in this instance that being 



20 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

a previous decision which has not long expired.  It is further considered that the 
proposal will have no visual impact and be a rounding off. 
 
The HLP asked that conditions of approval are delegated to officers. 
 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2025/0179/F be approved subject to 

conditions being delegated to officers. 
 
LA09/2025/0232/F Two storey side extension to existing dwelling to 

provide lounge and utility space on ground floor with 
first floor bedroom and walk in dressing room at 10 
Dernmore Drive, Coalisland, Dungannon for Mr 
Mickey Mansell 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2025/0232/F which had a recommendation for approval. 
 

Proposed by Councillor Kerr  
Seconded by Councillor Varsani and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2025/0232/F be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2025/0260/O Site for infill dwelling & domestic garage at 60m NE 

of 16 Drumhubbert Road, Dungannon for Mr James 
Daniel Wilson 

 
Agreed that application be deferred earlier in meeting. 
 
LA09/2025/0354/O Dwelling with garage at land adjacent to and W of 65 

Ballymacilcurr Road, Upperlands, Maghera for James 
Kyle 

 
Ms McKinless (SPO) presented a report on planning application LA09/2025/0354/O 
advising that it was recommended for refusal. 
 
Councillor Black stated that there is no agent for this application and asked if there 
has been engagement between the applicant and officers. 
 
Ms McKinless stated that there is no email trail uploaded but that is not to say there 
hasn’t been correspondence. 
 
The Chair asked for clarification that the farmhouses adjacent the site have no link 
with the applicant. 
 
Ms McKinless outlined the land owned by the applicant and stated this is a stand 
alone site.   
 
Councillor Black stated there appeared to be a number of uncertainties in relation to 
this application which cannot be answered tonight.  Councillor Black proposed that 
the application be deferred for one month to allow for further engagement with the 



21 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

applicant to address queries meaning that the Committee will then be better placed 
to make an informed decision. 
 
Councillor Robinson seconded Councillor Black’s proposal. 
 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2025/0354/O be deferred for one 

month for further engagement with the applicant. 
 
LA09/2025/0371/F Dwelling and detached domestic garage between 94 

and 96 Moneyhaw Road, Moneymore for Mr & Mrs 
Cormac & Rachell Murphy 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2025/0371/F which had a recommendation for approval. 
 

Proposed by Councillor Clarke  
Seconded by Councillor Bell and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2025/0371/F be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
The Chair adjourned the meeting for a comfort break at 8.25 pm.  The meeting 
resumed at 8.37 pm. 
 
LA09/2022/0657/O Dwelling and domestic garage at 40m W of 62 

Ballynargan Road, Stewartstown for Nuala 
McReynolds 

 
Agreed that application be deferred earlier in meeting. 
 
LA09/2022/1117/F Retention of shed ancillary to existing business and 

domestic dwelling and associated works, including 
extension of domestic and commercial curtilage, 
landscaping works, garden wallestate fencing and 
widening of access at 14 Tullydraw Road, Dungannon 
for Paul McCaul 

 
Mr Marrion (SPO) presented a report on planning application LA09/2022/1117/F 
advising that it was recommended for refusal. 
 

Proposed by Councillor S McPeake 
Seconded by Councillor Robinson and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2022/1117/F be refused on grounds 

stated in the officer’s report. 
 
 
 
 



22 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

LA09/2023/0290/O Dwelling and garage at lands approx. 93m NE of 19 
Coal Pit Road, Dungannon for Mr & Mrs Peter and 
Carmel McBrien 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2023/0290/O which had a recommendation for approval. 
 

Proposed by Councillor Varsani  
Seconded by Councillor Kerr and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2023/0290/O be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2023/1257/F New distribution hub and associated ancillary works 

at lands C.60m SW of 21 Hillhead Road, Toomebridge 
for Declan Graffin 

 
Agreed that application be deferred earlier in meeting. 
 
LA09/2023/1344/F Dwelling & garage (substitution for 

LA09/2022/0490/O) at 194m SW of 8 Killybearn Lane, 
Cookstown for Mr and Mrs Martyn and Niamh Devlin 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2023/1344/F which had a recommendation for approval. 
 

Proposed by Councillor Clarke  
Seconded by Councillor D McPeake and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2023/1344/F be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2024/0067/O Site for single dwelling and garage at land approx. 

60m SW of 21 Corvanaghan Road, Cookstown for Ms 
Joanne McGurk 

 
Ms McKinless (SPO) presented a report on planning application LA09/2024/0067/O 
advising that it was recommended for refusal. 
 

Proposed by Councillor S McPeake 
Seconded by Councillor J Buchanan and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2024/0067/O be refused on grounds 

stated in the officer’s report. 
 
LA09/2024/0556/F Retention of 3 storey pre fabricated office building at 

31B Tulyreavy Road Rock, Dungannon for Mr Brian 
Lagan 

 
Members considered previously circulated report on planning application 
LA09/2024/0556/F which had a recommendation for approval. 



23 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

Proposed by Councillor Kerr  
Seconded by Councillor Mullin and  

 
Resolved  That planning application LA09/2024/0556/F be approved subject to 

conditions as per the officer’s report. 
 
 
Matters for Information 
 
P070/25 Minutes of Planning Committee held on 6 May 2025 
 
Members noted previously circulated minutes of Planning Committee held on 6 May 
2025. 
 
P071/25 Receive Report on Deferred Applications Caseload 
 
The Chair stated this item would be considered in confidential business. 
 
 
Live broadcast ended at 8.46 pm.   
 
 
Local Government (NI) Act 2014 – Confidential Business 
 

Proposed by Councillor Varsani  
Seconded by Councillor Clarke and  

 
Resolved In accordance with Section 42, Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local 

Government Act (NI) 2014 that Members of the public be asked to 
withdraw from the meeting whilst Members consider items P071/25 to 
P076/25.  

 
 Matters for Decision  
 P071/25 Receive Report on Deferred Applications Caseload 

P072/25 Receive Enforcement Report 
   
  Matters for Information 

P073/25 Confidential Minutes of Planning Committee held on 6 
May 2025 

P074/25 Enforcement Cases Opened 
P075/25 Enforcement Cases Closed 
P076/25  Enforcement Live Case List 

 
P077/25 Duration of Meeting 
 
The meeting was called for 6.00 pm and ended at 9.40 pm. 

 
 
 

Chair _______________________  Date ________________________ 
 



24 –  Planning Committee (03.06.25) 
 

Annex A – Introductory Remarks from the Chairperson 
 

Good evening and welcome to the Council’s Planning Committee in the Chamber, 
Magherafelt and virtually. 

I specifically welcome the public watching us through the Live Broadcast. The Live 
Broadcast will run for the period of our Open Business but will end just before we 
move into Confidential Business. I let you know before this happens.  

Just some housekeeping before we commence.  Can I remind you:- 

o If you have joined the meeting remotely, please keep your audio on mute unless 
invited to speak and then turn it off when finished speaking 
 

o Keep your video on at all times, unless you have bandwidth or internet 
connection issues, where you are advised to try turning your video off 

 
o If you wish to speak please raise your hand in the meeting or on screen and keep 

raised until observed by an Officer or myself  
 

o Should we need to take a vote this evening I will ask each member to confirm 
whether they are for or against the proposal or abstaining  

 
o When invited to speak please introduce yourself by name to the meeting 

 
o For any member attending remotely, if you declare an interest in an item, please 

turn off your video and keep your audio on mute for the duration of the item 
 

o If referring to a specific report please reference the report, page or slide being 
referred to 

 
o Lastly, I remind the public and press that taking photographs of proceedings or 

using any means to enable anyone not present to see or hear proceedings, or 
making a simultaneous oral report of the proceedings are not permitted 

 

Thank you and we will now move to the first item on the agenda - apologies and then 
roll call of all other Members in attendance. 

 



 

 
 
  
 

 
ADDENDUM TO PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA 

          
 
FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING ON:  3rd June 2025 
 
Additional information has been received on the following items since the 
agenda was issued. 
 

Chair’s Business 

Mineral License 

 

ITEM INFORMATION RECEIVED ACTION REQUIRED 
   

5.10  Additional refusal reason to be 
included on LA09/2024/1015/O 

Members to note  

5.11 Amendment to recommended 
refusal reason on 
LA09/2024/1048/F 

Members to note  

6.4  Withdrawn from June schedule, to be 
presented at July meeting  

 

 

 

 



Item 5.10 

Additional refusal reason: 

The proposal is contrary to Policy CTY 8 of PPS 21 in that a dwelling in this location 
will add to an existing ribbon of development along this section of Sluggen Road. 

 

Item 5.11 

Amendment to recommended refusal reason to read: 

The proposal is contrary to Policies CTY 1 and CTY 3 of Planning Policy Statement 
21: Sustainable Development in the Countryside and does not merit being 
considered as an exceptional case in that the building to be replaced is of a 
temporary construction and does not exhibit the essential characteristics of a 
dwelling.  

 

 


